ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 27, 2003
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representative Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 174

"An Act relating to the state centralized correspondence study
program to funding for educational prograns that occur
primarily outside school facilities, and to the duties of school
boards of borough and city school districts and regional
educational attendance areas; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED HB 174 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 171
"An Act repealing the charter school grant program and
providing for an effective date."”
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT' HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 174

SHORT TI TLE: CORRESPONDENCE STUDY
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
03/ 05/ 03 0449 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 27, 2003



03/ 05/ 03 0449 (H) EDU, HES, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0449 (H) FN1: ( EED)

03/ 05/ 03 0449 (H) GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 10/ 03 0496 (H FN2: ( EED)

03/11/03 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/11/03 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/11/03 (H M NUTE( EDU)

03/ 13/ 03 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/13/03 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/13/03 (H M NUTE( EDU)

03/ 18/ 03 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 18/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Commttee

03/ 18/ 03 (H) M NUTE( EDU)

03/19/03 0583 (H) EDU RPT 3DNP 2NR 1AM

03/ 19/ 03 0583 (H) DNP: KAPSNER, GARA, SEATON
NR: WOLF,

03/19/03 0583 (H) GATTOQ, AM W LSON

03/19/03 0583 (H FN1: ( EED)

03/19/03 0583 (H) FN2: ( EED)

03/ 20/ 03 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 20/ 03 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 27/ 03 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

EDDY JEANS, Manager

School Finance and Facilities Section

Educati on Support Services

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support HB 174 and responded
to questions fromthe commttee.

JOHN SCOTT
Qust avus, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

NANCY RI CHAR
Trapper Creek, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

MARVEL LLOYD
None, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

SERENA LLOYD
Nome, Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 27, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

JOHN PADEN, Counsel or

Al yeska Central School

Representative, Al yeska Central School Association

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 174 and answered questions
fromthe commttee.

THERESA DEMOTT
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

AYARI E CANTI L- VOOHEES
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

LI NDA VOOHEES
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

BETTY COMVE
Chugi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

NANCY WLADYKA

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174 and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

DENI SE MALONEY

W1l ow, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174 and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

SEAN RUDDELL
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

VI CTORI A MARTI N

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174 and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

HAYLI E RUDDELL

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 27, 2003



VERNA G BSON
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

RYAN WOLCOTT
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT

KYM WOLCOTT
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

JULI ET ROBI NSON
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT

VI RA NIl A KAHLER
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

VALERI E WHI TE
Whal e Pass, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testified in opposition to HB 174.
Testified in opposition to HB 174.
Testified in opposition to HB 174.
Testified in opposition to HB 174.

Testified in opposition to HB 174.

Testified in opposition to HB 174

answered questions fromthe commttee.

PAULA W LLI AMS

(Address not provided)

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:

JENNI FER W LCOX
Gakona, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testified in opposition to HB 174.

Testified in opposition to HB 174

answered questions fromthe commttee.

TI' M MORGAN
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT

CHRI STI NE W LCOX
Gakona, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT

Cl NDY M CHOU

Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

Testified in opposition to HB 174.

Testified in opposition to HB 174.

Testified in opposition to HB 174.

-4-

and

and

March 27, 2003



THOVAS ROBI NSON
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

BREANNA ROBI NSON
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

RUBY BULLCHI LD
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

MARY TONY
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

SHEI LA SYMONS
Central, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174.

ALEXANDER DOLI TSKY, Ph.D.,

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on his own behalf in opposition
to HB 174 and answered questions from the conmttee about
Al yeska Central School, where he teaches social studies.

CECI LI A M LLER

Al yeska Central School Education Association

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174 and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

KEVI N SWEENEY, Speci al Assi st ant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 174 and
responded to questions fromthe commttee.

DEBBI E CHALMERS, Teacher

Al yeska Central Schoo

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174 and
responded to questions fromthe commttee.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Governnent Rel ations Director
NEA- Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 27, 2003



Eagl e River, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 174 and
responded to questions fromthe commttee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-29, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON called the House Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:04 p.m
Representatives WIlson, Gatto, Wl f, Coghill, Seaton, and C ssna
were present at the call to order. Representati ve Kapsner
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 174- CORRESPONDENCE STUDY

CHAIR WLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 174, "An Act relating to the state centralized
correspondence study program to funding for educational
progranms that occur primarily outside school facilities, and to
the duties of school boards of borough and city school districts
and regional educational attendance areas; and providing for an
effective date.”

Nunber 0115

EDDY JEANS, Manager, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Educati on Support Services, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent, testified in support of HB 174 and responded to
guestions from the commttee. He explained that the bill would
repeal the statutes referring to Alyeska Central School (ACS)
which is a state operated correspondence program

Number 0209

MR. JEANS said the commttee has two fiscal notes in their bill
packet . Fiscal note 1 in the amount of $5.5 million reflects
the BRU [Budget Review Unit] for ACS. In ACS s budget there is
authorization to receive and expend $5.5 mllion. He said
$500, 000 of those funds are from receipt services or fees that
ACS charges students for coursework. Through the foundation

program ACS generates about $3.8 nillion so the $1.2 nillion
remaining cones from other sources such as federal grants

through the departnent. Fiscal note 2 represents a reduction in
the foundation program of $1.1 mllion, which is approximtely
how much ACS generates for its summer school program The

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 27, 2003



reason the departnment l|eft the additional $2.6 mllion in the
foundation program is that the departnent believes those
students in the regular ACS program will enroll somewhere else
and that noney needs to follow those children.

Number 0295

MR. JEANS told the conmittee that ACS has been in existence
since 1939 and provides educational progranms to students living
in renote areas where there are no l|ocal schools available.
Al yeska Central School also serves students in wurban areas
around the state. The departnent determ ned that approximately
84 percent of the students enrolled in ACS live in larger urban
areas such as Anchorage, Fairbanks, the Mtanuska-Susitna ("Mat-
Su"), Kenai, Kodiak, and Juneau.

Number 0330

CHAIR WLSON comrented that at the time ACS was created, it was
the only correspondence school avail able. She asked how many
ot her correspondence schools are avail abl e now.

MR. JEANS responded that there are a nunber of correspondence
prograns available on a district | evel and 11 ot her
correspondence prograns that are offered on a statew de basis.
In 1997 just a couple of school districts started providing
correspondence progranms, and there has been quite an increase in
the nunber of students being served through correspondence
prograns over the years. |In 1999 there were approximately 7,890
students being served through correspondence school prograns.
Currently, the state is up to 9,655 students on a statew de
basis. He said that if the commttee |ooks at ACS s enroll nent

back in 1999 [including sumer school enrollnent], it was funded
for 2,628 students. In the current year, ACS had 1,085 students
in full-time prograns. M. Jeans agreed with Chair WIson's

comment that there has been a sizabl e decrease since 1999.
Nunmber 0466
MR JEANS told the commttee that the nenbers wll hear in

testinmony that ACS is the only accredited correspondence program
in the state, but three other school districts have applied for

accreditation for their correspondence prograns. The Gl ena
School District has a conditional accreditation pending
conpletion of the actual accreditation process. The ot her

districts that are in the process of accreditation include the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 27, 2003



Craig School District's PACE Program and the Delta/ Geely
district's Delta Charter Cyber School.

Nunber 0481

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked for M. Jeans to clarify the nunbers
again.

MR. JEANS said the $1.2 mllion is for the sumer school program
t hrough the foundation program The total funding ACS received
was $3.8 mllion through the foundation program So there is
$2.6 million remaining that funds the regul ar school program

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for <clarification on the fiscal
not es.

MR. JEANS responded that fiscal note 1 has a total of $5.5
mllion; of that, $3.8 mllion is funded through the foundation
funding program as interagency receipts, $500,000 is obtained
through program charges or tuition from students, and the
remai nder of the funds come through the departnent from the
federal government for prograns such as Title I.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the federal funds follow the
students as well as state funds.

MR. JEANS replied that he believes the funds would follow the
student s. Those funds are distributed on a fornula basis that
is determned by the needs of the students.

Nunmber 0660

JOHN SCOIT testified in opposition to HB 174 and answered
questions fromthe commttee. He told the commttee he does not
support the closure of ACS. In his previous testinony before
the House Special Conmittee on Education he had told the
commttee how the local Rural Education Attendance Area (REAA)
school could not offer an acceptable education for his children.
He said his famly was actually refused assistance when he
pointed out problens with his children's failure to achieve
mastery of subjects being taught. He said he could not plan for
his children's education. |In response to Chair WI son question

M. Scott responded that he was refused assistance about three
years ago.

Number 0681

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 27, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that is a serious accusation and he
would like himto provide evidence that his famly was refused
assi st ance.

MR. SCOIT explained that his daughter was having problens wth
mastery of spelling and sentence structure. He said he had
asked the head teacher if his daughter's teacher would be
allowed to assist in getting additional coursework or workbooks,
and he refused to help. The head teacher told him that he did
not want to help himwth this.

MR. SCOTT said another instance occurred when his children went
from fifth to sixth grade. He had requested additional help
wi th mat hematics and science concepts. The teacher put her hand
in his face and told himthat she does not teach science.

CHAIR WLSON asked how the children were doing in class at that
tinme.

MR. SCOTT said his children were getting As and Bs at that tine.
That is also part of the problem in that he did not think the
evaluation reflected the work the children were doing. At that
tinme, his famly needed sone quality choices and alternatives in
order to ensure his children would not be left behind. As a
result, his famly studied what options were avail able and found
that ACS was the only real alternative. None of the other
correspondence schools could offer the history and prestige of
ACS. Al yeska Central School was accredited, and therefore,
courses were accepted by colleges. Qher prograns do not have a
course catalog and program |like ACS, and they do not have the
willing and able staff capable of evaluating mastery of
subj ects, provision of assistance, and support.

MR. SCOIT told the commttee he was struck by the testinony in
previous hearings where there was an assertion that other
correspondence schools could provide an equal alternative to ACS

for distance education. The other correspondence prograns do
not offer an equal educational experience for his children that
ACS does. He said he was struck by the testinony of the

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment per sonnel
indicating "they did not want to be in this business" and that
ot her distance education prograns could pick up the slack and
were wlling and able to do so. M. Scott asked what business

the departnent wants to be in. He told the commttee the only
thing the other providers were willing to do is take the state's
noney and sign his children up before the "count date" in

Oct ober so they could get the noney. He said he was struck by

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- March 27, 2003



the enphasis or the assertion that noney could be saved by the
cl osure of ACS.

Nunber 0912

MR, SCOIT told the commttee if they close ACS the state's
contribution toward his children's education wll rise from
about $3,800 to over $10,000. There are other children who are
in the ACS student body who could go to boarding school and the
cost could go as high as $15, 000. He questioned what kind of
accounting rules are being used in determining the savings to
the state. He asked if Arthur Andersen [the accounting firm
inplicated in the Enron scandal] 1is lurking in the fiscal
depart nment.

Number 0950

MR, SCOTT summari zed by saying that at best, this is a raid on
the state's treasury by the less qualified and |ess capable
district programs, or at worst, it is an attenpt to get famlies
to leave the state to seek education. Alyeska Central School is

not redundant. He asked a nunber of questions about how the
closure of ACS would be handled and what would happen to
students. He said this bill |eaves children behind, does not

pronote choice, and does not provide for a better alternative.
He said he takes it personally because it is his children who
will be left behind and his children who will no |onger have a
choice. He asked the committee not to support this bill

Number 1060

NANCY RICHAR testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the commttee her son recently graduated from
ACS. She said her son was the third generation of children in
her famly that graduated from ACS Her children have
experienced both public and correspondence prograns in the past
and found ACS a breath of fresh air. There is no conparison
between traditional public school and ACS. She told the
commttee she called the Mat-Su [ Mat anuska- Susitna] Borough | ast
week to see if its program was approved. Its high school

classes are all ordered from out of state, and teacher contacts
consists  of ordering courses, nonthly appoi ntnents, and
recording grades. She said the Mt-Su School District
correspondence program knew nothing about participation in the
Academ ¢ Decat hl on, Hugh O Brien's Leadership Conference, or the
state and national C ose-Up prograns. Al yeska Central Schoo

participates in all of these prograns. In addition, if a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- March 27, 2003



student enrolls after the Novenber 1 cutoff date, the parents
have to pay the $250 fee for each course. When she called the
| DEA [Interior Distance Education in Al aska] program she was
told that it is a hone school program not a correspondence
pr ogram The parents are the teachers; that neans the child' s
education is as good as the parent's education and conmtnent.
She said her son would not be where he is today w thout ACS.

Nunber 1177

MARVEL LLOYD testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the commttee she lives in Nonme and has two
daughters currently in ACS and a son who graduated from ACS who
is currently a junior in college. Ms. Lloyd said it is clear
fromthe testinony she has heard in the last three neetings that
closing ACS is not a noney issue. The uni queness of ACS has
been recounted over and over again. She told the conmmttee
ACS' s required accountability with the teachers, the fact that
the teachers know their subjects well and have witten and

rewitten the curriculum and the "one-on-one" wth students
over the phone are sone of the nost inportant features of ACS
She questioned the policy that the state should not be involved
in education. Alyeska Central School fills in gaps in
education, especially with respect to sumer school. Ms. LI oyd
asked why the legislature would consider throwing away what is
not broken.

Number 1262

SERENA LLOYD testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the commttee she is a high school student wth
ACS and it is a very good program No ot her correspondence
program of fers what ACS does.

Nunber 1310

CHAIR WLSON questioned whether ACS only accepts students after
"the count” with special permssion fromthe conmm ssioner of the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment. She asked if ACS
al so charges $250 per class if students enroll after the count
dat e. Chair WIson asked if John Paden would cone forward and
speak to these issues.

Number 1354

JOHN PADEN, Counselor, Alyeska Central School; Representative,
Al yeska Central School Association, testified on HB 174 and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 27, 2003



answered questions fromthe conmttee. M. Paden responded that
ACS does accept children at any tinme of the year. The students
are counsel ed depending upon the particular time of the year
they are considering enrollment. For exanple, if a student were
to cone in and want to start a class in April and finish it in
June, the counsel would be that it is pretty unlikely that a
student could finish the course in the anount of tinme the
student has chosen.

CHAIR WLSON asked if in that circunstance there would be a
charge and whether it would be necessary to get perm ssion from
the comm ssioner of education. She asked what the process would
be.

Nunber 1400

MR. PADEN explained that typically a parent will call requesting
late enrollnment for the child. After discussions with the
parent, he nmakes a decision based on the circunstances of the
student and has the ability to approve enrollnent wthout

char ge. He said that ACS does enroll sone students who pay
tuition, or at a given time of the year, ACS may waive the
tuition. Much of the determnation is based on the

circunstances of the famly; for exanple, if a student has noved
from one district to another, the student would be enrol

wi thout tuition. If the student has not enrolled in a |ocal
school and is new to the state, ACS will enroll himher wthout
tuition.

Number 1462

CHAIR WLSON asked how easy it would be for famlies to enrol
their children if a teacher becanme sick or for sone reason
students were without a teacher.

MR. PADEN responded that it can be very easy, depending on the
circumstances. He said, for instance, if there has been illness
or for sone reason the student has not been able to be in class,
then ACS will bring the student in at no charge to the famly.

CHAIR WLSON asked if there is a limt on how nmany students ACS
can accept in this way w thout charging tuition.

MR. PADEN responded that ACS cannot do it indiscrimnately;

however, they try to be responsive to what is happening with the
famly.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 27, 2003



CHAIR WLSON asked what happens if it is not necessarily a
hardship situation with the famly. For instance, if a student
is having trouble at school or the student does not I|ike the
teacher, so in the mddle of the year the famly wants the
student to go to ACS, what would happen in that situation?

Nunber 1512

MR. PADEN said in a circunstance when the student has been in
school and there is no nedical issue, no change in district, and
the student is not new to the state, then the usual procedure is
to offer the programw th tuition.

CHAI R W LSON asked how rmuch would the fam |y have to pay.

MR. PADEN responded that the cost is $250 per course per
senester.

Nunmber 1568

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d that one of the concerns she has for
rural Alaska is that so many of the teachers in the Bush are
teaching out of their subject areas. Since ACS has so nany
certified teachers in their subject areas, does ACS provide
assistance to these teachers to help strengthen the prograns for
rural students?

MR. PADEN replied that it is possible and in some cases it does
happen. He said that sonetines a district will say to ACS that
it will pay the $250 for a course. Requests do not always cone
fromthe famly.

CHAIR WLSON comrented that there are nany teachers across the
state, not just in rural areas, that are doing an excellent job
teaching in areas that they are not certified to teach.

Nunmber 1650

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about schools that no |onger offer a
particular course, for instance, |anguage courses. She asked
what the arrangenent is between districts and ACS with respect
to enrollnment of sonme of their students in classes that are not
avai l able in local schools.

MR. PADEN said it is not uncommon for districts to buy courses

from ACS. The understanding when a district does that is that
they are also buying teacher services. He comrented that this

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- March 27, 2003



also relates to Representative Kapsner's question about when a
district is getting not just teaching materials, but also
teachi ng services. Sonmetinmes a district my buy the course
W thout the teaching services. He said he does not know all the
details of that arrangenent, but when that happens soneone
| ocally does the teaching portion of the course while using
ACS's course materials.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the charge of $250 per senester
per course woul d apply.

MR. PADEN responded that is correct. Those funds would go into
programrecei pts that M. Jeans spoke of a few nonents ago.

Nunber 1740

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said that in reviewing testinony she
noted there is a letter from Becky Crabtree, alternative
education teacher in Barrow, who says that they have a
partnership with ACS whereby over 50 North Slope students in six
renote villages have enrolled in one or nore classes. She said
her question was answered thanks to both M. Paden and Becky
Crabtree.

Nunmber 1761

CHAIR WLSON noted that in the House Special Commttee on
Education neeting it was said that 26 percent of the students
enrolled in ACS are also enrolled in other correspondence
progr ans. She said that in many cases it is a "cafeteria"
arrangenent where classes are picked fromdifferent schools.

Nunmber 1788

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expl ained that since she was not at the
House Special Comm ttee on Education neeting that discussed this
bill, she is trying to gain a better understanding of the issue.
Representative Cissna shared her experience with a stepson who
was a graduate of ACS in the m d-seventies. Wen she began hone
schooling him he was three and a half years behind
academcally. He had been to a special school and a traditiona
school, but was getting further and further behind. She said as
a famly there was a decision to lock heels and put himin hone

school . It took 12 nonths of hard |abor, and he graduated 8th
grade on course level with As and Bs because of concentrated
wor K. Her famly felt it was the only way it could be done

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 27, 2003



She asked M. Paden if there are statistics on why people choose
t hese prograns and what they are able to acconpli sh.

MR. PADEN replied that he does not have those statistics, but
believes ACS has the ability to address that question sonewhat.
There are many circunstances that bring people to ACS, and it is
hard wor k. Many conme to ACS to shorten the tinme that would be
required to bring kids up to their peer level. He said it does
happen, but it is a lot of work.

CHAIR WLSON asked if there is an admnistrator at ACS that
makes the decisions or is he the person that makes the
determ nation as to whether or not a student cones into ACS.

MR. PADEN responded that there is an adm nistrator. The Acting
Director, Margaret MKinnon, is not here today. She is the
person who ultimately nmakes the deci sions.

Number 1942

TERESA DEMOIT testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174 and answered questions from the committee. She told the
committee that her son is in his fourth year at ACS and he is
just conpleting his eighth grade this year. She asked why a

nearly perfect school is being |ooked at for closure. I f her
famly goes wth one of the other correspondence schools and the
accreditati on does not happen, her son will lose all that tine
in school . She said her son was not offered enough in public
school . He was | abeled a gifted child, but what they did for
himis offer him a bus ride every Friday to go hang out wth
other gifted children. She said she knows what her child's

capability is and it is her job to nake sure he achieves his
hi ghest potential. Alyeska Central School has provided this to
him He is an excellent student, maintains As and Bs, and is in
constant contact with his teachers, from whom he receives so

much support. He gets the support he requires, and he did not
get that in public school. M. DeMtt said she knows noney is a
bi g issue. She believes that the commttee has not been given

enough information to make the right decision to protect ACS
st udents. She said she feels that she is being attacked. She
asked the conmittee to defeat the bill

Nunber 2023

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, if there were an alternative schoo
that was accredited, whether that would be all right.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 27, 2003



M5. DEMOTT responded that it would not, because they do not
offer the sane caliber of courses that ACS offers. This can be
verified by | ooking at other school curricul uns.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if M. DeMtt felt ACS is the only
school that can provide the education needed for her son. [ Ms.
DeMott did not respond.]

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if M. Jeans would respond to the
reason ACS is being targeted when other schools are not.

Nunber 2070

CHAIR WLSON responded that ACS is the only state-run
correspondence school .

Number 2187

AYARI E CANTI L- VOOHEES testified via tel econference in opposition
to HB 174. She told the commttee she has been in enrolled at
ACS since kindergarten, with the exception of three years. She
said ACS is not a duplicate of other correspondence schools.
She knows the other schools and would not be satisfied attending
them and woul d not have the personal dedication she has now for
educati onal excellence, had she not gone to ACS. She said there

are many students that need what ACS has, and it wll end up
costing the state nore just to close ACS than it would to keep
it open. If the other correspondence schools do not neet the

2005 standards, the state will have to reopen ACS. She told the
commttee that the governor asked the legislature to |ook at

this bill and judge it w sely. Pl ease vote no on HB 174, she
asked.
Nunber 2187

LI NDA VOORHEES testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the commttee she has used ACS for fifteen years
to home school her children. The House Special Committee on
Education heard a great deal of testinony on this bill and she
urged nenbers who were not there to listen to that testinony.
Al yeska Central School is not a part of correspondence school
dupl i cation. Its particular conbination of assets is not offer
anywhere el se. She cited the huge expense in Internet services
for rural Al askan famlies. The cost could be as high as $900
per nonth per <child, which is wunaffordable to nost Al askan
famlies. Ms. Voorhees said it takes between three and five
years to get accredited once the school's application is in, and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- March 27, 2003



it will nmean students who graduate from these schools w Il not
have diplomas from an accredited school. She said parents who
do honme schooling need options.

Number 2291

BETTY COME testified via teleconference in opposition to HB 174.
She told the conmittee she has two children who are enrolled at
ACS, even though her famly only lives one and a half mles from
Chugi ak Hi gh School .

M5. COME expl ained that both of her children suffer from inmune

di sorders. When her daughter was in ninth grade she got very
sick and spent six nmonths out of school. Sonme of the teachers
woul d not have honework avail able. When her daughter was in

school [her daughter has an individual education plan (IEP) for
a learning disability], she was allowed to turn in her homework
three days late; however, that was never followed through wth
the teachers, and she just got further and further behind.
During that tinme, her famly found ACS and it has hel ped her

children trenendously. They are now staying up wth honework
and staying on task. Her son experienced the sane problem with
illness because the Chugiak H gh School is so overcrowded.
Since he has been at ACS, he is doing trenendously well. Ms.

Come said if it were not for ACS, her kids would be left behind.
It is the best honme schooling programout there.

TAPE 03-29, SIDE B

NANCY WLADYKA testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174 and answered questions from the committee. She told the
commttee that she has two sons, ages eight and twelve, who have
been enrolled at ACS for about three years. Two words define
ACS for her famly: academ cs and excel |l ence. She said they
have been very inpressed with the high-quality academ c program
ACS offers. They are grateful to have the privilege of working
with the wonderful, dedicated teachers and staff at ACS.

M5. WLADYKA said her twelve-year-old son was enrolled in public
school through the fourth grade. The curriculum was not
chal I engi ng enough for him and there was not much synpathy from
the public school when she conplained that her son needed to
|l earn nore than what was being offered. She said she knows
teachers have their hands full working with children who are
struggling. During the early years in school, she volunteered
on a reqgular basis in her son's classroons and w tnessed the
problem Her son would spend a frustrating day in the classroom

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 27, 2003



and conme home eager to educate hinself. She said her eight-
year-old son is allergic to peanuts, which can be a Ilife-
threatening allergy, and has asthnma. She said her famly
decided it would be reckless to send him to a school with no
school nurse and where peanuts are preval ent. They began hone
schooling and he is advanced in academ cs. Ms. Wadyska told
the commttee her children have benefited enornmously from their
education with ACS and believe it wwuld be a mnmstake to
elimnate ACS. No conparabl e program exists. She said ACS is
not a duplication, it is a success story. Pl ease do not | eave
ki ds stranded wi thout ACS, she asked nenbers.

Number 2274

CHAIR WLSON commented that M. Wadyka's children sound |ike
exceptional children. She asked if the public school was unable
to chal l enge them

M5. WLADYKA responded that her son's test scores were at the
99th percentile in a second grade CAT [California Achievenent
Test] test. He was eligible to be tested at the Johns Hopkins
University, and it was then recommended that he be privately
schooled or tutored. She explained that her famly does not
have the financial resources for that kind of education. She
said her husband worked in the tinber industry for 30 years and
she is sure Chair Wlson is aware of what is happening there.

Number 2224

DENI SE MALONEY testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174 and answered questions from the commttee. She told the
commttee that she is a concerned parent of an ACS student.
There are several points that need to be |ooked at before
considering the elimnation of ACS. Alyeska Central School was
established in 1939 and has been accredited since 1979. She
poi nted out that no other correspondence school offers this kind

of record. Al yeska Central School offers an extensive
curriculum to choose from in order to neet the needs of
i ndi vi dual students. The teachers and staff develop the

curriculum and grade the work. WMany of the other correspondence
school s use outside staff and do not grade the papers. Several
of these schools actually use ACS as one of their vendors.
Al yeska Central School is not the school that is duplicating
servi ces. She said that M. Jeans stated in commttee that the
only concrete savings is in the Departnent of Adm nistration for
| easi ng of space. The funds will still be there, just sent to
ot her schools. Those students who return to public schools wll

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 27, 2003



end up costing the state nore. She said her child wll. V5.
Mal oney comented that her child is also a gifted child and has
taken the Schol astic Achievenment Test (SAT) as a seventh grader
and eighth grader for Johns Hopkins University and has done
outstandingly well. She said her daughter has been with ACS for
two years. Oiginally, they enrolled her as a tuition-based
student because her famly was not happy with the public schoo
system

Nunber 2159

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about the relationship between ACS
and Johns Hopki ns University.

M5. MALONEY responded that her daughter was identified as gifted
when in the public school system because of her CAT scores or
benchmark scores. She said Johns Hopkins University does a
talent search for gifted children. These children are offered
the opportunity to take the high school SATs at the seventh- and
ei ght h-grade |[evels. In response to Representative Gtto's
guestion as to whether ACS is in sonme way connected to Johns
Hopki ns Uni versity, she responded that it is not.

Number 2099

SEAN RUDDELL testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. He told the commttee he is a student at ACS and |ikes the
program very much. During his time in public school, from
ki ndergarten through sixth grade, he found it to be a traumatic
experience. He said his sister attended ACS and he believes ACS
is the best program ever. Even though he could have attended
Central Mddle School, which is supposed to be one of the top
five mddle schools in the country, he chose to attend ACS. He
said he |oves the fact that he can choose his own | earning pace
and curriculum and the one-on-one contact with teachers.

Number 2030

VICTORIA MARTIN testified via tel econference in opposition to HB
174 and answered questions from the committee. She told the
committee she is a hone school grandnother and teacher. Her two

kids are in eleventh and ei ghth grades and have attended ACS for
three years. She comented that a cost sheet had been submtted
by Rick Currier that proves that ACS is saving the state noney.
Many of the students are enployed, and the state is getting tax
noney from these students. This program offers her children the
opportunity to go forward nore quickly. They are able to pick

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 27, 2003



up a phone and contact a teacher if they have a question. It is
a great programand it does not need to be cut.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about her comments on Central M ddle
School .

M5. MARTIN responded that her grandson won a lottery to go to
Central M ddle School. He was | abeled as a gifted student and
went from kindergarten through sixth grade in the Anchorage
public school s.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about her comment about picking up a
phone and contacting a teach at any tine. What are the teachers
doi ng bet ween phone call s?

M5. MARTIN responded that they are grading |essons. If a
teacher is not available, then ACS finds sonmeone who can answer
a question. If they cannot get an answer right away, then the
teacher will call them back. Sonetines teachers will even cal

on weekends.
Number 1927

HAYLIE RUDDELL testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She said that she has a really good friend who has been
with ACS for six years now because of illness. M. Ruddell said
she nentioned her friend because she is a good exanple of a
child that did not fall through the cracks because of ACS. She
said she has been going to ACS for three years now and it is a
wonderful program The list of good things goes on and on. She
told the commttee she does not want the school to be closed.

Nunmber 1896

VERNA G BSON testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the conmttee she is a parent and foster parent.
When her daughter, who was an honor student, becane ill, she was
only able to graduate because of ACS. She now attends UAA
[University of Alaska Anchorage] and is on the chancellor's
list, received an associate's degree wth honors, and wl]l
graduate in 2004. Her daughter was not able to conme to the
neeting and speak today, so she is testifying in her behalf.
None of these opportunities would have been available to her,
had it not been for ACS.

Nunber 1840

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 27, 2003



M5. G BSON explained that she is also a foster parent for
children who have problens and runs a therapeutic group hone.
She told the conmttee she has used ACS for sone of her children
who, because of behavioral problens, cannot attend public
school . Had it not been for ACS, many of these children would
not have been able to attend school. She summari zed that she
believes the commttee would be doing a lot of children a
di sservice by voting for this bill

Nunber 1819

RYAN WOLCOTT testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174 and answered questions from the conmttee. He told the
commttee he is twelve years old and a seventh grade student at
ACS. Hs famly has a business that takes them to different
|l ocations in Alaska, and ACS has provided them wth the
flexibility they need. He said he was hoping to finish seventh

grade in April and nove on to the next grade, hopefully
conpleting the eighth grade by the end of the summer or shortly
after. He told the conmmttee his famly contacted the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent for the other
el even options nentioned in prior neetings. On March 20 they
sent an e-mail with a list of questions. Instantly upon e-
mailing the eleven nessages, they discovered six were
undel i ver abl e. They had to call to get the correct e-nail

addresses. As of today, he said, they have only received three
responses; one answered their questions, and two would not
answer the questions and referred his famly to their web site.
He said he thinks it is very scary that if there is no support
for his famly now, what will happen when ACS is no |onger there
for him No other program conpares to ACS. Please save ACS, he
asked nenbers.

Nunber 1759

CHAIR WLSON asked M. Wl cott if he would fax her the questions
his fam |y asked.

Number 1721

KYM WOLCOTT testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the commttee that she has already testified.
Her main concern was to ensure that her son had an opportunity
to testify on his views of ACS. She said that she hopes the
commttee will not vote to close ACS

Number 1702

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- March 27, 2003



JULI ET ROBINSON testified via tel econference in opposition to HB
174. She told the commttee she has a daughter who is attending
ACS because she is unable to attend a traditional school because

she has Tourette Syndrone. It is a condition that s
distracting to other students and teachers. She said that her
daughter has always been an enthusiastic student, but in the
| ast year has begun to miss a |lot of school due to her illness
or cold or flu. There is evidence that individuals who suffer
from this disorder also have a weakened inmune system V5.

Robi nson said when her daughter entered her freshman year in
high school she was mnmissing one week per nonth and it was
becom ng increasingly difficult for her to keep up wth
school wor k. Anxi ety causes the synptons of her illness to
becone nore pronounced.

M5. ROBINSON said after w nter break, her daughter's anxiety
becane so bad that she was unable to return to school. She said
that she |ooked into correspondence schools as an alternative
but was told that they do not accept students in md-senester
and there was generally a charge involved. That is when she
spoke to John Paden, a counselor at ACS. She told M. Paden
about her daughter's condition and he told her that ACS does
make allowances for illness and that they would admt students
in the mddle of the year and there would be no charge. MVe.
Robi nson said she was inpressed by the w de range of classes
offered by ACS. Wen her daughter |earned that she could attend
ACS, her synptons decreased dramatically. Pl ease consi der
everyone's testinony when you consider whether or not to close
ACS, she asked nenbers.

Nunmber 1595

VIRA NI A KAHLER testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174 and answered questions from the committee. She told the
commttee that she has been attending ACS for three years now.
Wien she attended public school in ninth grade, she conpletely

failed it. She did not know how to do math and knew not hi ng
about grammar. She said she was enbarrassed to ask for help
because she felt stupid. Wien she would ask for help the

teachers would say they would work with her at |unch, so she
woul d sit through the whole class not knowi ng what to do. \Wen
the teachers would help her, they would rush through it and she
still would not understand it. She said she had no goals for
her sel f. She said if she could not pass high school, what was
she going to do wth her life. When she attended ACS, the
teachers gave her one-on-one attention and nade sure she got it.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- March 27, 2003



The teachers would <call her to make sure she understood
concepts. She said she was actually getting As and that felt
good. Her sisters now ask her how to solve math problens and
how to wite paragraphs and where to put commas. She told the
commttee she has now set the goal of going into the mlitary
after high school. She said she would like to finish high
school with ACS because she has done so well. Kids who attend
ACS are graduating and getting their high school diplomas. She
asked why the legislature would want to take that away from
t hem

Nunber 1491

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, when she had a problem with math,
whet her she cal |l ed ACS

M5. KAHLER responded that she did.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO observed that when she worked face-to-face
with a teacher in a classroom she was not able to understand
it, but was able to understand it through a phone call.

M5. KAHLER responded that is correct. She explained that the
hi gh school teacher in public school really had no patience with
her . Wien she called ACS, the math teacher was there for her
She said he nmade sure she got the math problem 100 percent. She
said until she went to ACS, she never ever got As on math tests.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how | ong that phone call was.
M5. KAHLER replied it was probably a 40-m nute call.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that she had one-on-one for 40
m nutes. He asked how often she calls teachers.

M5. KAHLER responded not very often, probably three tines per
week. Math is her weakest subject.

Number 1453

VALERIE WH TE testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the conmttee she is a honme school teacher of two
children, works in a famly business, and is involved in the
community they live, which is Wale Pass. She conment ed that
she agrees with all the supporting testinony of ACS. Al yeska
Central School is a very inportant program and should stay open.
Her ol dest son has been enrolled at ACS for twelve years and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- March 27, 2003



hopes to get his diplonma next w nter. Her younger son was wth
ACS for the first years of school, but has been with the |DEA
School out of Galena since 1998. Her famly knows what the two
types of prograns offer. Alyeska Central School has nade a huge
difference in her son's life. He has been able to participate
in prograns |ike Academ c Decathlon and C ose-Up. Going to
Washi ngton, D.C., was a huge opportunity for a rural student.
She said she is concerned that the other progranms are fairly new
and have not had the opportunity to prove thenselves. They
could easily get regulated out of existence by the Departnent of
Education and Early Developnent or elimnated by their schoo

boards if financial problens arise. Al yeska Central School is
the only correspondence program guaranteed to Al askans by |aw.
Pl ease do not meke any rash decisions about ACS, she asked. She
comented in response to Representative Gatto's earlier question
about what the teachers do, saying that she has had the
opportunity to visit the teachers at ACS and they are busy all

the tine. They have between 70 to 80 students each. She asked
if the conmttee would try to do what it can to keep ACS.

Nunber 1302

CHAIR WLSON said ACS has 60 students per teacher capped for
el enentary school; however, there are nore students in the high
school, as they teach students at other high schools.

M5. WHI TE said she knows the PE [physical education] teacher has
about 200 students.

Number 1270

PAULA WLLIAMS testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the comrittee that she has three boys currently
in ACS, and a daughter that already graduated from ACS. V5.
Wlliams comented on the many people who testified whom she
agrees with and hopes the commttee will keep their thoughts in
m nd. By closing ACS, the state wll be losing the only
mandat ed program and for people |like her famly who live in the
Bush, there is no brick-and-nortar school and there is no
choi ce. She said she does not want to use sonme other program
that nmay not be around in a couple of years. Ms. WIIians
commented that her son is a senior and wants to go to college
and he needs an accredited senior year. This school is the only
program that wites and updates the classes. Over the last six
years, she has seen the science program inprove wth the | atest
information. Every year the teachers are inproving the classes.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- March 27, 2003



She asked that the |egislature not close ACS Be sure to | ook
at all the facts, she urged nenbers.

Nunber 1183

JENNI FER WLCOX testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She said she is a student at ACS and is opposed to the

bill for two reasons. First, the other alternative schools are
not equal to ACS. Second, closing ACS will not save the state
noney.

V. WLCOX explained that the many alternative schools
identified to her famly as possible replacenments for ACS have
not received accreditation yet. In fact, it could take up to
five years for sonme of them to becone accredited, while ACS has
been accredited since 1979. Many of the schools are trying to
devel op courses that are already in place at ACS. The ot her
schools do not have the nunber of staff or teachers, and the
teachers do not support their students the way they do at ACS
She said that sone of the schools are conpletely conputer-based,
which is not an option for her and other students

M5. WLCOX discussed the issued of savings to the state. She
said it costs $3,220 for an ACS student versus $10,992 for the
state to send her to public school in her district, which would
be a $7,772 increase to the state. She pointed out that there
would be no savings at all for her and her brother, just an
i ncrease. Pl ease consider her testinony and keep ACS open, she
concl uded.

Nunmber 1095

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked for the nanes of the schools her
famly contacted and which they deci ded woul d not be adequate.

M5. WLCOX nanmed the IDEA Program in particular. She al so
poi nted out that the superintendent for the Delta/ Geely Schoo
spoke in Representative Gatto's conmittee about not Dbeing
accredited and that it would take at least two years to be
accredited.

CHAIR WLSON asked if her famly had actually contacted the
school s or had just heard about them

M5. WLCOX replied that her nother did contact |DEA School and

Nenana Student Living Center. Al t hough she had contacted
several, she said she did not have the list in front of her.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- March 27, 2003



Number 1014

TIM MORGAN testified via tel econference in opposition to HB 174.
He told the commttee his daughter is currently enrolled at ACS.
She got pregnant at 17, and her choice was to either drop out of
school or go to ACS. She chose ACS and it has been a good
choice for her. He said she has been able to stay hone with her
baby. He said his daughter has other friends who got pregnant
in school, dropped out of school, and now are on welfare. He
said if the state closes ACS, there will be nore people on
wel fare because they do not have a choice. He said his daughter
cannot afford day care, so her choice is to home school or not
do school at all. He told the commttee he does not think ACS
shoul d be cl osed.

Number 0963

CHRI STINE WLCOX testified via teleconference in opposition to
HB 174. She said she is the parent of students in ACS and is
opposed to closing ACS for all the sane reasons that the
commttee has already heard. There is no real savings. The
alternative schools like IDEA did offer [her fam ly] $1,500 per
student to attend, and the way it worked is that the famly
would send in their grades once per nonth and that was just
about it. It did not offer the backup services offered by ACS
She said she just does not see any advantage to closing ACS
Everything ACS offers is excellent.

Nunmber 0898

CINDY MCHOQU testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the conmttee she has testified in previous
hearings but wanted to make a quick point that the Anchorage
School District (ASD) relies on ACS and its sunmer school
program  The Anchorage School District has a limted nunber of
slots for the sumrer school, and ACS is the nunber-one school on
the ASD |ist where students will be accepted and receive credits
for high school. She said she believes that ACS acts as a
safety net for a lot of kids across the state and she hopes the
commttee will vote no on HB 174.

Nunmber 0806
THOVAS ROBI NSON testified via tel econference in opposition to HB

174. He told the commttee he has a child that has a need and
like a lot of other parents has |ooked for a way to help his

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- March 27, 2003



child. He said ACS was that hel ping hand. M. Robinson told
the conm ttee he hopes the nmenbers will vote this bill down.

CHAI R W LSON asked what grade his daughter is in.
MR. ROBINSON replied that she is a freshman this year.
Number 0719

BREANNA ROBINSON testified via teleconference in opposition to
HB 174. She told the conmittee she is a freshman at ACS and
enrol |l ed because she has Tourette Syndrone. If it were not for
ACS, she believes she would be behind in all of her classes

She said she is a "pretty smart” student and does not think it
would be fair. She said she found that the other correspondence

courses did not accept students in the mddle of the year. She
said that throughout her school career, she had been getting
good grades until Tourette Syndrone got worse; however, since

she has been enrolled at ACS she has been getting good grades.
Number 0620

RUBY BULLCHI LD testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She told the conmttee she is a student at ACS because she
had knee-reconstruction surgery last fall, which neant she fel
behind in her studies. She urged the conmttee not to vote in
favor of closing ACS. She said the President of the United
States says he does not want any children left behind and said
that if ACS is closed, she wll be left behind. Ms. Bullchild
said she is proud of attending school in Alaska and wants to
graduate from Alaska and not from a school in the Lower 48
st at es. She said she is a straight-A student and is ahead in
both math and reading. She said she wants to continue with ACS
so she can stay ahead and believes if ACS is closed she wl
fall behind and may have to repeat ninth grade. Ms. Bullchild
told the conmmittee that she has been going to ACS for two years
and has conme to |love the program because it is a great school
for renedial and "super achievers.™

Nunmber 0509

MARY TONY testified via teleconference in opposition to HB 174.
She told the commttee that ACS has experience, know edge, and
expertise. Al yeska Central School works. She said she knows
this because she and three of her siblings conpleted el enentary
school through ACS when a |ocal school closed due to Iow class
size in the 1970s. She said that of the three of them two have

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- March 27, 2003



coll ege degrees, one is a lawer, and one is both a mayor in a
Bush conmunity and a school board nenber. She pointed out that
with many other prograns, the noney wll be going out of the
state and she feels these funds should be kept in Al aska. She
summari zed by asking if the commttee was discussing any other
resource would they consider sending state funds outside Al aska.
Ms. Tony urged the commttee to | ook closely at this program and
ot her prograns.

Nunber 0229

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO comented that M. Tony is very well
educated and asked if she did the majority of the teaching. He
asked if she really just uses the curriculum

M5. TONY responded that she does the nmpjority of the teaching;
however, she calls ACS as a resource, especially when her
daught er needs additional assi stance.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if she uses the curriculum and nmakes
a phone call when needed.

M5. TONY responded that she relies on the teachers and their
expertise.

Nunber 0184

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if she has nmet the person on the
ot her end of the phone.

MS. TONY responded that she has not net the teachers. She said
that the curriculum is Al aska-based. For exanple, she said
bi ol ogy deals with Al askan flora and fauna. She said this is
what makes ACS uni que.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded that this is not the point of
education; whether it is or is not Al askan flora and fauna, if
biology is being taught it is inportant that her daughter get

nore than just sone information. He comented that what is
inportant in all of this is that when she nmakes a call, she gets
a result. He pointed out that it is perfectly within her neans

to add sone information or adapt the book. Representative Gatto
said he is trying to determne if she |likes ACS because she is
used to it or because ACS truly is so nmuch better than any other
school and she can prove that.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- March 27, 2003



CHAIR WLSON explained that the conmttee was running out of
time and others still want to testify.

Nunmber 0043

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER objected to the question's being asked
w thout Ms. Tony having an opportunity to answer the question.

Number 0020

M5. TONY summarized her view that wth ACS she has the
confidence that she is there teaching her child to neet the
state requirenments for her education. The other progranms do not
gi ve her that confidence.

TAPE 03-30, SIDE A
Number 0001

SHEI LA SYMONS testified via teleconference in opposition to HB
174. She asked the committee to please listen to all of the
testinmony that has cone before them \ether the testifiers are
rural or urban, they are all opposed to this bill. She asked
the commttee not to pass this bill and pointed out that the
state does not even have a comm ssioner of education [in the new
adm nistration yet]. Please do not pass this bill, she asked.

CHAIR WLSON announced that she would like to hear from
individuals in the audience who have sonmething to add that the
comm ttee has not already heard.

Nunber 0126

ALEXANDER DOLI TSKY, Ph.D. testified before the conmmttee as a
private citizen, although he is a social studies teacher at

Al yeska Central School. He testified in opposition to HB 174.
He wanted the nenbers to know he is on annual |eave and is
speaking only for hinself. He said he has been enployed wth

ACS since 1988 as a sumer school teacher and then for twelve
years as a permanent full-tinme enployee. When he was hired in
1990, the enrollnent was 800 students, and over the years the
enrol I ment has fluctuated between 800 and 1,100 students. In
1992 or 1993, when other correspondence prograns energed, ACS s
enrol |l nrent decreased. The ACS parents understand what the other
prograns offer.

Nunmber 0283

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -29- March 27, 2003



DR. DCLI TSKY told the conmttee he wanted to address information
that was provided by the departnent. He comrented that the
teachers at ACS are not only witing curriculum but they are
grading |l essons, witing comments and comentaries, taking calls
to discuss problens or questions, and witing letters. He said
he grades between 30 and 35 |essons per week. For three years
he taught Russian. He said he is under contract for 230 working

days per year as a senior teacher. Those that are not senior
teachers are wunder contract for a |longer nunber days of
vacati on. Summer school hires 30 additional teachers, and if
they do finish their work during that time, it is the year-round
teachers who do the work. Last year he said he graded 600
| essons in addition to his own work. Any ot her schoolteachers

in school districts have contracts for 186 days, while his
contract is for 230 days. He pointed out that he works | onger
hours for the sanme pay.

Nunmber 0405

DR. DOLITSKY told the commttee that 84 percent of the ACS
student population is in urban areas. He pointed out that that
is consistent with statew de denographics, as 16 percent of the
popul ation in Alaska lives in rural areas. He said 50 percent
of the students live in Anchorage. There are 459 students from
the Anchorage area and nearly 440 students in all other areas.
The proportion is the sane. In summary, he said al nbst anyone
can be a good teacher for a week, but not everyone can be a good
teacher for 25 consecutive years. Every school has a success
story, but not every school has a success story for 60
consecutive years. He asked the commttee not to dismantle
sonet hing that cannot be replaced easily. He comented that he
does not want his daughter or his students to read Shakespeare
froma [conmputer], but from a hard-cover book. There is such a

thing as authenticity. Dr. Dolitsky pointed out that sone
progranms cone and go and it is not known what will happen with
t hese school s. He said he is a teacher with a master's degree

from Browmn University and a Ph.D. from Bryn Mhr Coll ege. He
said ACS should be proud of the teachers and students it has.

Nunber 0491

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA conmented that she was involved with ACS
over 20 years ago and it was a great program She said she
hel ped to create a program for a kid who was told by Capital
School that they did not want him back. She said what she sees
in the letters of support of ACS nmany things that have changed
and things she has never heard of, like classes on |ine.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- March 27, 2003



Number 0546

DR. DOLITSKY responded that there are 19 classes that have
recently conme on line. He said he does not teach those classes,
but a couple of them are world history and Anerican governnent.
He said he has recently witten three courses. The courses are
updated all the time. Dr. Dolitsky said he often does neet his
students if they go to Cose-Up in Washington, D.C He pointed
out that sone of his students were winners in the Al aska History
Day conpetition. One student from Haines won fourth place in
t he nati on.

Number 0594

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she noted that Dr. Dolitsky is a
publ i shed author and said few schools can boast that they have
publi shed authors on their staff. She asked how many ot her
t eachers have published books.

DR, DOLITSKY said he has published eight books. He does not
know how many other teachers have published books; however, he
does know ot her teachers have witten articles and that ACS has
a remarkably qualified staff. He said he has taught college for
14 years at the University of Al aska Sout heast.

Number 0672

CHAIR WLSON called a recess to the call of the chair at 4:50
p.m The commttee reconvened at 5:00 p. m

Nunmber 0685

CECILIA MLLER, Alyeska Central School Education Association,
testified in opposition to HB 174. She told the commttee she
is a math and technol ogy teacher at ACS, but is testifying today
on behalf of ACS Education Association. As a teacher, she said
she first cane to work at ACS as a summer school teacher and
found that the program really addressed at-risk kids' needs.
For these kids, having soneone they can call right away when

they have a problem is critical to their success. She said
before she did it, she could not inagine teaching math over the
phone, but found that she is very good at it. Ms. Mller

explained that she teaches a huge range of classes including
busi ness and consuner math, geonetry, pre-calculus, and advanced
al gebra, both on Iline and print-based. She said she has
devel oped sonme of the <courses and can help her students

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -31- March 27, 2003



understand a difficult class easily. Teaching these classes is
a tough job.

Nunmber 0855

CHAIR WLSON commented that whatever happens wth ACS, she wl|
assure that the other correspondence schools becone nore
account abl e.

M5. M LLER responded that ACS would not comment on whet her ot her
correspondence schools are accountable. She said if the other
schools are neeting the needs of students, then she s
supportive of those prograns because not every child |earns the
same way.

Number 0887

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what kinds of questions are asked on
t he phone.

M5. M LLER responded that nost of her day is spent evaluating
student work, but recently she received a call from a student
from Barrow who had a question on advanced algebra about
| ogarit his.

Nunmber 0945

KEVI N SWEENEY, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Department of Education and Early Developnent, testified in
support of HB 174 and responded to questions fromthe committee.
He said he wanted to comment on the two mgjor points the
commttee has heard about today. The first point is the noney

i ssue. Many have argued that this will not save noney, but in
fact will cost the state noney. He said he believes that npst
of the students currently enrolled in ACS would enroll in
anot her correspondence school if ACS were not an option. He

believes that sonme of the testinony heard today actually
supports that claim A lot of these students said they tried
their local public school and it did not work for them It was
not the kind of education they were |ooking for, and they do
better in a correspondence type of program M. Sweeney said
that it is the departnent's opinion that nost of these Kkids
would go to other correspondence schools, which costs the sane
amount to the state as ACS does.

Nunber 1017

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -32- March 27, 2003



MR. SWEENEY told the commttee there is a significant savings in

the elimnation of the sumrer school. Alyeska Central School is
the only funded summer school in the state. Last year this
school cost $1.2 mllion. There are also significant facility
| easi ng savings of $370,000 per year. He said even if sonme of
these students do not go into another correspondence school, a
majority of them are not in that $10,000-per-year-cost. A

majority of them are in the urban centers, where ADM [average
daily nenbership] [cost] is $4, 200. He said he believes the
conparison of $3,200 to $10,000 is the extreme and not the
normal occurrence.

Number 1044

MR. SWEENEY said the second issue discussed today was the issue
of curricul um the question as to whether the other
correspondence schools offer the same curricula that are offered
at ACS. He said if this bill passes, the departnent's exit plan
for ACS is to gather up all the curricula that are currently
offered at ACS and take that curricula and nmake it available to
all the other districts by putting it in "our"” library so it is
accessi bl e. The departnent wants to work wth these other
districts to assure they are offering different types of
curricul a. QO her districts who offer correspondence classes
have indicated that should the curricula be available, they
woul d offer these classes and adapt to the students' needs. M.
Sweeney pointed out that it is hard to conmpare at the nonent
what is going to happen at another correspondence school when

ACS is not around. These other correspondence schools are
really in conpetition for students, and it is apparent in their
enrol | ment. He conpared the enrollnent of ACS and the |DEA
School out of G@Glena. VWiile ACS' s enrollnment has fluctuated

the departnent believes that it is on the decline, whereas
Gal ena and ot her correspondence prograns have been grow ng.

Nunmber 1080

MR. SWEENEY said the departnment believes as a policy decision it
is time to end the centralized correspondence program run by the
state. The departnent would rather offer assistance to the
districts that have seen their correspondence progranms grow, and
offer them the <curricula that have been developed in the
st atewi de correspondence program and neet the student's needs in
t hat way.

Nunber 1129

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 33- March 27, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked M. Sweeney, if the departnent has
a program that is growing, why the state would want to cut the
rug out fromunder it.

MR. SWEENEY responded that the departnent is not asking the
ot her correspondence schools to change what they are doing now.
What the other prograns are saying is that they wll expand
their curricula to neet the needs of the students they have now
- sone schools have 3,500 to 3,600 students - but also neet the
needs of the students com ng in. He summarized by saying that
the departnment is not asking these progranms to do a whol esal e
change. The schools have expressed an interest in making sure
they develop the type of program that neets the needs of the
students who woul d have chosen ACS, had it been avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d she is confused by this policy. She
used the exanple of a private business where the nost popul ar
business in town is shutdown so the other stores wll get a
share of the business. She pointed out that the nobst popul ar
store is popular for a reason, so why close it down for the
benefit of stores that are not doing as well.

CHAIR WLSON comented that if it were the nost popular, then it
woul d have the nobst clients. |In the case of ACS, it does not.

Nunber 1215

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked what happens to the students that
the commttee heard from who this year really depend upon this
program because of accreditation. She said her understanding is
that ACS is the only accredited correspondence school in the
state.

Nunber 1240

MR. SWEENEY responded that if a student were to transfer to
Gal ena School, where an accreditation is in process and the
school has been given a tenporary accreditation, the student
would in fact be graduating from an accredited school. He al so
suggested that if accreditation is extrenely inportant to the
student, there is always the option of going back to the | ocal
district to finish the | ast year.

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA pointed out that the conmttee heard

testinmony that attending public school was totally inpossible
for sone students. She said these students have a really good

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 34- March 27, 2003



reason for not being in public school. It is not sonething that
is casually done.

Nunber 1285

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how many of the schools that are
doi ng correspondence prograns now are just Internet-based and
how many are U.S. nmuail -based.

Number 1309

MR. JEANS responded that the only school that is 100 percent
Internet-based is the Delta/ Geely School .

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if there are any others that use
the mail system [No response was given to this question.]

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how nmany schools provide books for
students to read.

Number 1350

DEBBI E CHALMERS, Teacher, Alyeska Central School, testified in
opposition to HB 174 and responded to questions from the
comittee. She explained that ACS provides books to students.
It is her understanding that the other prograns provide parents
with stipends; wth those funds, the parents can obtain
educational materials, educational opportunities, or |earning
experi ences. In response to Representative Gatto's question as
to whether ACS offers the same choices to students, she
responded that ACS does offer the same choi ces.

Number 1372

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON comrented that when the Delta/ Geely
superintendent testified before the comittee, he said the
school could acconmpdate 200 students, but that they really only
serviced college-preparatory classes or advanced- pl acenent
student s. He asked if there is an effectiveness rating for
those students who are not in those groups, for instance, groups
who woul d be | abel ed as at-risk or special -needs students.

MR. SWEENEY asked Representative Seaton if he would clarify the
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that he is trying to nake a
conpari son anong different correspondence schools. He said he

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 35- March 27, 2003



knows that correspondence schools are not equivalent. H s
concern is for children in his district that are special-needs
students. For exanple, he had a student who is autistic and was
not able to function well in sonme of these correspondence
schools, but was able to do well at ACS. He said he is trying
to figure out if there is any kind of Departnment of Education
and Early Developnent rating of how well the correspondence
schools do in providing services to special -needs students.

MR. SWEENEY said he does not know if the departnent has ever
done a rating system on all correspondence schools. He said he
does not believe the departnment has ever even done a rating on
ACS's ability to provide that service. He said he would have to
| ook into what the other correspondence prograns have to offer
speci al - needs students. The district prograns would have to be
| ooked at also to see what they mght offer. M. Sweeney
clarified that there has been discussion of only 11 statew de
correspondence prograns and that nunber does not include the
districts' correspondence prograns that only serve students who
live in their districts. He pointed out that there are nore
choices than just the 11 nentioned. For exanple, in Kenai for
the last four or five years, the district's correspondence
program went from less than 100 students up to 400 students in
its program

Nunmber 1500

CHAIR WLSON comented to Representative Seaton that sone
famlies wuse out-of-state correspondence prograns as well.
There are a large variety of correspondence prograns to choose
from and a huge nunber of students that are enrolled in
correspondence prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that his purpose in bringing
this issue up is that he has received a nunber a letters and
testimony from famlies whose children would be considered
speci al -needs students, whether it was because of autism or
whet her the students needed to be in school year-round so that
they would not fall behind. He said the conparisons are not the
sanme; this is not dealing wth apples and apples, but apples and
oranges. He said he is trying to find out the inpact on at-risk
student s. He wants to know if there is sonmething special about
ACS. He asked if there is any enpirical data for that.

Nunmber 1565

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 36- March 27, 2003



MR. SWEENEY commented on an earlier point that Delta/ Geely had
said that it is prepared to absorb about 200 students. He said
t hat full-tine enr ol | ment at ACS is appr oachi ng 700
[ approximately 670] students. In a Juneau Enpire article,
Gal ena said that it can absorb 1,000 to 1,500 nore students and
that it also is ready to develop a program that has the sane
anount of teacher involvenent to accomobdate the students.

MR. SWEENEY al so commented with regard to curricul um devel opnent
that there is a consortium of school districts through Al aska
On-Line, which includes the WMt-Su, Kenai, and Delta/ Geely
[districts] that are in the process of developing their own
curriculum Al yeska Central School is a part of that program
and other districts may join on. They have been in the process
of developing curricula and wll continue to develop curricula
that are focused on the idea of correspondence study. It is not
fair to say that ACS holds the market on devel oping curricul a.
There are other districts that are doing it as well.

Nunmber 1659

JOHN  ALCANTRA, Gover nnent Rel ations Director, NEA- Al aska,
testified in opposition to HB 174 and responded to questions
from the commttee. He pointed out to the nenbers of the
commttee that ACS has a highly qualified faculty in place in
the core content areas that neet the requirenents of NCLB [No
Child Left Behind]. Anot her inportant fact that has not been
mentioned is that ACS could provide supplenental services for
the NCLB that other correspondence prograns could not provide
Al yeska Central School can al so provide high school prograns for
teacher's aides and educational support professionals that wl|
have to neet the qualifications of President Bush's No Child
Left Behind Act. Sone aides have to conplete their high schoo
di pl omas, and sone need additional course work, up to 60 coll ege
credits beyond that, in order to keep their jobs as educational
support professionals.

CHAIR WLSON questioned that none of the other correspondence
school s coul d do that.

MR. ALCANTRA replied that is correct. None of the other
prograns can do that.

CHAIR WLSON asked if that is because of the accreditation
i ssue.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -37- March 27, 2003



VR ALCANTRA responded that it is partly because of
accreditation and partly because ACS has been in place for 60
years, conpared with a school that has been in place five years.
These ot her schools just have not gotten there yet.

MR. ALCANTRA said that ACS existed before statehood, before oi
pi pelines, and before the first Alaska State Legislature. He
said ACS needs to exist after the Twenty-Third Alaska State
Legi sl ature. M. Alcantra asked that the commttee hold the
bill because, as has been seen in the overwhel mng testinony,
this idea has not been thought through. Pl ease do not rush to
judgnent on this, he urged.

Number 1777

CHAIR WLSON asked what the age requirenment is for enrolling in
ACS. She commented that nost high schools do not permt sonmeone
over 21 years of age to attend.

MR. ALCANTRA responded that age would not be a factor under a
program created for program providers. He said he is not sure.

Nunmber 1805

M5. MLLER told the commttee that statute says any Al askan can
go to ACS as a tuition-program student who wants to obtain a
hi gh school di pl ona.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how many teachers will no |onger be
enpl oyed with ACS if this |egislation passes.

MR ALCANTRA said the nunber of teachers at ACS is 26.
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if these teachers are all certified
and if there is a demand for certified teachers el sewhere in the

state.

MR. ALCANTRA said he does not know specifically if there is a
demand for the 26 teachers at ACS.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired if the 26 teachers were under
contract for the FY 04 public school year.

MR. ALCANTRA replied that is correct. These teachers' contracts

wll be ending at the end of the school year. In sonme places,
that will be just about the sanme tinme the |egislative session
ends.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 38- March 27, 2003



Number 1881

M5. CHALMERS told the commttee she is a fifth- and sixth-grade
teacher at ACS and wanted to offer her perspective as an
educat or. She said she has been a teacher since 1992 and did
not even know the program existed until she wal ked through the
door. Since she has been at ACS, she has gained a great deal in
working with parents. When she started teaching in 1976, she
had heard a | ot about the hone school partnership. She said she
does not think she has seen that partnership nore actively
engaged than through the ACS program Al yeska Central School
works directly with students and parents, and does it well.

Nunber 1941

M5. CHALMERS said ACS curricula are not stagnant. If these
prograns are distributed to districts, the teachers would not
use the print-based | esson plan to teach. It is like using the
sane |esson plan book every year. She said she updates her
curriculum continually and integrates a variety of supplenenta
materials with her teaching. She provides online opportunities
for students through the Jason Project, which is a science-
oriented curricul um and t hr ough Nat i onal Geogr aphi c

Experiential and Adventures in On-Line Quests, as the student is
| earning about the world around them There are also online
book di scussions and book clubs. M. Chalners said she connects
her students through these opportunities, some through online
and sone through the print-based curricul um This results in a
| evel of expertise and enthusiasm as a teacher does not trave

with the curricul um

Number 2037

M5. CHALMERS shared an experience she recently had wwth a hone
school teacher in Karl uk. She said he is not a paraprofessiona

yet, but hopes to be and he is very concerned about his
students. He said he really appreciates the teacher support ACS
provi des, because the stand-al one curricul um does not do that.

CHAIR WLSON conmented that Ms. Chalnmers has the qualities of a
very good teacher

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he thinks M. Chalnmers is bright,
educated, and obviously experienced. He asked, if ACS is
elimnated, what wll happen to her students and what wl|
happen to her.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 39- March 27, 2003



M5. CHALMERS said that in Karluk the parents did not feel it
woul d be an option to go to the district correspondence program

She said she does not know what will happen to all the students.
Because of declining nunmbers of students, the state has had to
close schools and there wll be a need for correspondence
educat i on. One ninth grader in Karluk is considering Munt
Edgecunbe as an option or possibly going back to Kodiak Hi gh
School . He is not considering going to another correspondence
program

Number 2099

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that this discussion could go
on and on. He believes the point has already been nmade.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO di sagr eed.

CHAIR WLSON announced that she would close testinony on the
bill at this tine.

Number 2106

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report HB 174 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

Number 2112
REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he believes this is a policy call
and is not intended to show any disrespect to the teachers or
the history of ACS He said he believes there has been sone
wonderful work and good curriculum devel opnent, and that the
students have educational needs. He does not disagree with the
testinony that has been given. Representative Coghill said that
getting the students' needs net has been an issue the conmttee
has struggled with for nany years. The policy call he sees is
whet her the legislature should give the districts the
responsibility of meeting these needs. There are a group of
people who are getting special help from the state outside of
the districts they live in.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he believes the districts need to

take the responsibility. There are 135,000 students in Al aska,
and this represents 1,080 students. The districts are stepping

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -40- March 27, 2003



up wth cyber schools. This is a way to get those districts
reconnected to the students, whether it is excellence in
education, teacher certification, or culturally relevant issues

that are inportant to those areas. The policy call has been
made by the governor, and Representative Coghill stated he is
going to support him He said this is a tough decision because
he |ikes educational choices, but he believes it is a good

policy decision.

Nunber 2243

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives WIson, Gatto,

Wl f, and Coghill voted in favor of reporting HB 174 from
comittee. Representatives Seaton, GCissna, and Kapsner voted
against it. Therefore, HB 174 was reported from the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee by a
vote of 4-3.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 5:35 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -41- March 27, 2003



